
1 

INDEPENDENT REMUNERATION PANEL 
 

AGENDA 
 

11:00am Friday 5 May 2006 
 
 

1. Apologies for Absence   

2. Declarations of Interest   

 To receive any declarations of interest Members may wish to make 
including the term(s) of the Grant of Dispensation(s) by the Standards 
Committee.  
 

 

3. Confirmation of the minutes of the meeting held on 27 October 
2005 (Pages 1 - 4) 

 

4. Allowance for the Deputy Leader of the New England Party 
(Pages 5 - 22) 

MD 

 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



1 

DARTFORD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

INDEPENDENT REMUNERATION PANEL 

 

MINUTES of the meeting of the Independent Remuneration Panel held on Thursday 
27 October 2005. 

 
PRESENT: 

 
 
ALSO PRESENT: 

Mr A Murdoch 
Rev M Cooper 
 
Councillor M T Tibby 

 
1. APPOINTMENT OF  CHAIRMAN AND VICE-CHAIRMAN  

 
RESOLVED: 

 

That Mr A Murdoch be appointed Chairman and Reverend M Cooper Vice-
Chairman for the third year of the Panel’s term. 
 
The Chairman referred to Mr D Higgs, the former Vice-Chairman, and paid 
tribute to the excellent work carried out by him on behalf of the Panel.  
 

2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
Apologies for absence were received from Mr A Thrussell. 
 

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
There were no declarations of interests. 
 

4. CONFIRMATION OF THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 28 

SEPTEMBER 2004.  
 
 RESOLVED: 
 
That the minutes be confirmed as a true record. 
 

5. TO CONSIDER AN ALLOWANCE FOR THE DEPUTY LEADER OF THE 

NEW ENGLAND PARTY  
 
The Panel considered a request by Councillor M T Tibby, the Leader of the 
New England Party (NEP), for the payment of a Special Responsibility 
Allowance to the Deputy Leader of the Party.  The Panel concluded that it 
could not consider the Deputy Leader of the NEP without considering the 
Leader. 
  
The Head of Finance and Resources summarised the existing scheme of 
allowances for Members, concentrating particularly on those for Leaders and 
Deputy Leaders of political parties, and referred to the three previous reports 
that the IRP had produced.  
 
Although the current scheme is not as originally recommended to the Council, 
the Panel acknowledged that the results of the 2003 local elections introduced 

Agenda Item 3Page 1



INDEPENDENT REMUNERATION PANEL 
THURSDAY 27 OCTOBER 2005 

 
 

2 

a new political administration with a coalition between the Conservatives and 
the Residents’ Association and Independents Group. In particular, special 
responsibility allowances had been introduced for junior ministers and the 
Leader and Deputy of the Residents’ Association and Independents Group. 
 
Councillor M T Tibby was invited to expand on his request. He commented 
that the New England Party was formally recognised as a political party by the 
Electoral Commission and the Council and, accordingly, for the purpose of 
allowances, its Leader and Deputy Leader should be treated the same as the 
other Leaders and Deputy Leaders on the Council.  He commented that 
special responsibility allowances are paid to all Members of the Conservative 
Group as well as the Leader and Deputy Leader of the Residents’ Association 
and Independents Group.  He emphasised that the principle for the future 
should be established now. 
 
The Head of Finance and Resources said that at least one member of the 
conservative group did not receive a special responsibility allowance and the 
others were paid as a result of their Portfolio, Junior Minister, or other 
responsibilities 
 
Members of the Panel commented that it had been their view, when making 
their original recommendations, that special responsibility allowances should 
be paid only where Members undertake significant additional responsibilities, 
over and above those of the ordinary Member. This was in accordance with 
the guidance issued by the Office of the Deputy Prime Minister. Accordingly 
they considered whether the roles of Leader and Deputy Leader of the New 
England Party are more onerous than the ordinary member and similar to 
other party leaders.  . 
 
Following detailed discussion, the Panel concluded that they did not have 
sufficient information with which to make a decision. The Head of Finance and 
Resources undertook to produce a report, for further consideration, 
rehearsing both arguments for and against the payment of the allowances and 
providing options for the Panel to consider.  The report will include a list of 
allowances paid to individual Members of the Council and, if possible, provide 
details of any allowances paid by other authorities to Leaders and Deputies of 
the non ruling political party. 
 

 RESOLVED: 
 
That the question of the payment of allowances to the Leader and Deputy 
Leader of the New England Party be deferred pending a further report. 
 

6. TO CONSIDER AN ALLOWANCE TO COVER THE ADMINISTRATIVE 

COSTS OF THE CHAIRMAN OF THE STANDARDS COMMITTEE  
 
The Panel considered a request by the Chairman of the Standards Committee 
for an allowance to cover his administrative costs. 
 

Agenda Item 3 Page 2



INDEPENDENT REMUNERATION PANEL 
THURSDAY 27 OCTOBER 2005 

 
 

3 

In a tabled report, the Executive Director outlined the role of the Chairman of 
the Standards Committee and the additional time and costs incurred by virtue 
of the position. 
 
The Panel believed that a number of the additional duties referred to in the 
report constituted an inherent part of the normal role of a Chairman and, as 
such, did not warrant an additional allowance.  However Members accepted 
that some additional activities are undertaken and administrative costs 
incurred by the Chairman. 
 

RESOLVED: 
 
That the General Assembly of the Council be recommended to increase the 
annual allowance for the Chairman of the Standards Committee from £500 to 
£575. 
 
 
 
The meeting closed at 3.47 pm 
 

 

  
 
 

Mr A. Murdoch 
CHAIRMAN 

Agenda Item 3Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 3 Page 4



INDEPENDENT REMUNERATION PANEL 
5 MAY 2006 

 

ALLOWANCE FOR THE DEPUTY LEADER OF THE NEW 
ENGLAND PARTY 
 
 
 

1. Summary 
 
 

1.1  At its meeting on 27 October 2005, the Panel considered a request for an 
allowance for the Deputy Leader of the New England Party. Councillor M 
Tibby had submitted a letter outlining his request and gave further details 
at the meeting. Following a detailed discussion, the Panel asked for 
further information. 

 
2. RECOMMENDATION 

 
2.1 That Members consider the request for an allowance to be paid to the 

Deputy Leader of the New England Party and make a recommendation to 
the General Assembly of the Council. 

 

 
3. Background and Discussion 
 

3.1  Attached as an Appendix A to this report is a short summary of the 
discussion at the meeting on 27 October 2005 and some further 
information obtained.  

 
3.2  In considering whether an allowance should be payable, the Panel 

needs to consider the guidance from the Office of the Deputy Prime 
Minister: 

 
“If the majority of members of a council receive a special responsibility 
allowance the local electorate may rightly question if this was justified. 
Local authorities will wish to consider very carefully the additional roles 
of Members and the significance of these roles, both in terms of 
responsibility and time commitment before deciding which will warrant 
the payment of a special responsibility allowance.” 

 
3.3  The current Members’ Allowances Scheme is at Appendix B to this 

report.  
 
3.4  Councillor M Tibby has requested that an allowance be paid to the 

Leader and Deputy of any party because they all have the same 
responsibilities and all involve additional time and workload. At the 
meeting on 27 October 2005, Councillor Tibby was unable to quantify 
this additional workload.  

 
3.5  Appendix A shows the allowances currently paid to Leader and Deputy 

Leader of three of the political groups on the Council (the Council has 

Agenda Item 4Page 5



INDEPENDENT REMUNERATION PANEL 
5 MAY 2006 

 

  

4 political groups). The Leader and Deputy of the Residents 
Association and Independents Group receive an allowance as part of 
the ruling coalition. The main opposition political group (Labour) has 16 
members, whereas the New England Party has only two.  

 
3.6  The Panel need to consider if the additional workload is significant 

enough to warrant a special responsibility allowance. If so, then the 
rate of the allowance needs to be considered. Previously, the Panel 
have used the Leader’s allowance as the benchmark and based other 
allowances as a percentage of the Leader’s.  

 
3.7  The Panel may also like to consider the Medway scheme where the 

amount of an allowance of opposition leaders and deputies is based on 
the number of Councillors that the political group has. For example, the 
Panel could consider the following: 

 
Main opposition – irrespective of how many Councillors  
 
  Leader    - 30% of Leader 
   Deputy Leader – 30% of Deputy Leader 
 
Other Opposition Groups 
 

If less than 10% of total number of councillors (less than 5) – nil 
 

If more than 10% but less than 20% of the total number of councillors 
(between 5 and 8) – 20% of the allowance paid to the Leader or 
Deputy 

 
More than 20% of the total number of councillors (9 or more), 25% of 
the allowance paid to the Leader of Deputy Leader. 

 
3.8  The Panel is asked to make a recommendation to the General 

Assembly of the Council. 
 

4. Relationship to the Corporate Plan 
 

Not applicable  
 

5. Financial, legal, staffing and other administrative implications and risk 
assessments 

 
Financial Implications Not applicable to the Panel. 
Legal Implications Not applicable to the Panel  
Staffing Implications Not applicable to the Panel  
Administrative Implications Not applicable to the Panel  
Risk Assessment Not applicable to the Panel 

  
 

Agenda Item 4 Page 6



INDEPENDENT REMUNERATION PANEL 
5 MAY 2006 

 

  

6. Appendices  
 
A – Summary of discussion at meeting on 27 October and further information 
 
B – Current scheme of Members’ Allowances 
 

 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

Documents 
consulted 

Date File Ref Report 
Author 

Section and 
Directorate 

Exempt 
Information 
Category 

Report to the 
Panel 27 Oct 
2005. 

  Steve Brooks 
01322 343317 

F&R 
MD 

N/A 

 

Agenda Item 4Page 7



Page 8

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 of 4 

INDEPENDENT REMUNERATION PANEL 5 MAY 2006 
 
ALLOWANCE FOR THE DEPUTY LEADER OF THE NEW ENGLAND 
PARTY 
APPENDIX A 
 
Summary of discussion at the meeting of 27 October 2005 and other 
information obtained 
 
At its meeting on 27 October 2005, the Panel received a report on a request 
from the Leader of the New England Party (NEP) that a special responsibility 
allowance be paid to the Deputy Leader of the NEP. 
 
This note gives some background to the request, summary of the discussion 
at the meeting on 27 October and some further information that Members of 
the Panel requested. 
 
Background 
 
The political make up of the Council comprises: 
 
Conservative 21 
Labour 16 
Independents 5 
New England 2 
 ----- 
 44 
 
The Leader of the NEP was elected to the Council in May 2003 and was the 
only member of the NEP. In May 2005, Councillor Brooker (an existing 
Councillor) transferred from the Independents Group to the NEP. 
 
Under the Local Government (Committees and Political Groups) Regulations 
1990, a political group is formed when it has two or more members. 
 
The Council’s current scheme of allowances provides for the following 
(relevant) special responsibility allowances: 
 
Leader of the Council   £18,720 
Deputy Leader of the Council  £11,232 – 60% of Leader 
 
Shadow Leader (main opposition)   £5,617 – 30% of Leader 
Deputy Shadow Leader    £3,370 – 30% of Deputy Leader 
 
Leader of Residents Association and the Independents Group  
       £5,617 – 30% of Leader 
 
Deputy Leader of Residents Association and the Independents Group 
       £3,370 – 30% of Deputy Leader 
 
In addition, group leaders receive £211 per group member excluding 
themselves. 
 

Agenda Item 4

 

Page 9



Page 2 of 4 

 
 
Discussion at meeting of the Panel on 27 October 
 
At the meeting on 27 October, Councillor Tibby gave his reasons for 
requesting the allowance and Members of the Panel asked questions. 
 
Although Councillor Tibby had requested an allowance for the Deputy Leader 
of the NEP Members of the Panel recognised that they should also consider 
the Leader of the NEP. 
 
In summary Councillor Tibby said that regardless of the number in the group 
the Leader and Deputy Leader of NEP were spokespersons for the NEP and 
thus had to undertake similar work to other group leaders and deputies. 
However, when asked how much extra work this entailed Councillor Tibby 
gave the impression of little additional work, although the Panel did recognise 
that some additional work would be necessary.  
 
Councillor Tibby could not see any significant difference between the Leader 
and Deputy of the Residents Association and the Independents Group and 
the NEP. 
 
The Panel asked that further research be undertaken to ascertain how other 
Councils Schemes for Members’ Allowances dealt with this. The following 
information has been obtained: 

Agenda Item 4

 

Page 10



Page 3 of 4 

 
Further Information 
 
Medway 
 
The Medway scheme sets a benchmark of 100%. All other allowances are 
percentages of the benchmark. 
 
Leader = 110% of benchmark plus 50% of portfolio holder allowance 
Deputy = 80% of benchmark 
 
Group Leader (when group >20% of all Members) = 50%   £8,647 
Deputy Group Leader (group > 20% of all Members) = 20%   £3,459 
 
Group Leader (group > 10% of all Members)         = 25%   £4,324 
Deputy Group Leader (group > 10% of all Members) = Nil 
 
Canterbury 
 
Leader       £16,248 
Deputy Leader    £ 5,688 – 35% of Leader 
 
Leader of ruling group   £2,535 
Leader of main opposition   £1,656 
Leader of next group   £   681 
 
Deputy Leader of ruling group   £1,689 
Deputy Leader of main opposition  £1,104 
Deputy Leader of next group  £   456 
 
Tunbridge Wells 
 
Special responsibility allowances are generally made by reference to the 
basic allowance. 
 
Leader (200% of basic allowance)   = £6,798 
Deputy (150%)    = £5,100 
 
Group Leaders (currently only Conservative and Liberal Democrat)  
Receive £516 plus £50 per group member. 

Agenda Item 4

 

Page 11



Page 4 of 4 

 
Bexley 
 
Leader      £24,101 
Deputy      £16,067 
 
Leader of main opposition   £12,050 
Deputy Leader of main opposition  nil 
 
Note:  main opposition spokesmen receive £3,013 
 
Other groups do not receive any special responsibility allowances 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 4

 

Page 12



Members Allowances/Scheme 2006 and 2007
Date: 25.04.06 

DARTFORD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
MEMBERS’ ALLOWANCES SCHEME 

APPENDIX B

Agenda Item 4

 

Page 13



Members Allowances/Scheme 2006 and 2007
Date: 25.04.06 

DARTFORD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
MEMBERS’ ALLOWANCES SCHEME 

INDEX

Preamble 1
1. Basic Allowance 1
2. Special Responsibility Allowances 2
3. Carer’s Allowance 3
4. Travel and Subsistence Allowances 3
5. Co-opted Members 5
6. Pension Benefits 5
7. Other Duties 5
8. Forego Allowances 5
9. Part Year Entitlements 5
10. Payments and Claims 6
11. Backdating 6
12. Suspension or Partial Suspension of a Councillor 7

APPENDIX B

Agenda Item 4

 

Page 14



Members Allowances/Scheme 2006 and 2007 1
Date:25.04.06 

DARTFORD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
MEMBERS’ ALLOWANCES SCHEME 

Preamble
This Member's Allowances Scheme is made under the provisions of the Local 
Authorities (Members' Allowances) (England) Regulations 2003 (the 2003 
Regulations) and any other regulations which may come into force from time to 
time.

In making this Scheme, the Council has had regard to the recommendations 
contained in the Report of the Independent Remuneration Panel considered by 
the Annual Meeting of the Council on 21 May 2003 and subsequently. 

This Scheme shall have effect on 1 April 2005 and shall have effect for the rest 
of the year ending 31 March 2006 and thereafter. 

Where the Council has regard to an index (e.g. local salary levels) for the 
purposes of the annual adjustment of allowances, such index shall be relied on 
for a period not exceeding four years whereupon a further recommendation of 
the Independent Remuneration Panel shall be sought in respect of the Council’s 
application of an index to its scheme.  For the avoidance of doubt, where the 
only change to this Scheme is affected by an annual adjustment in accordance 
with an index, this Scheme shall be deemed not to have been amended. 

This Scheme may be amended at any time (having regard to the 
recommendation(s) of the Independent Remuneration Panel) but may only be 
revoked with effect from the beginning of the year.  Where this Scheme is 
revoked, the Council shall before the revocation takes effect, make a further 
scheme.

In this Scheme:- 

(a) ‘Councillor’ means a member of Dartford Borough Council who is 
a Councillor; 

 (b) ‘Year’ means the 12 months ending 31 March. 

1. Basic Allowance 

(a) Subject to para.6 below, each Councillor shall be paid a basic 
allowance of £4,025 per year. 

(b) In addition to the basic allowance, the cost of the line for the fax 
machine shall be paid together with call costs to a maximum of 
£53 per year.  For members of the Cabinet Shadow Leader, 
Shadow Deputy Leader and the Mayor, a maximum of £106 per 
year shall be paid. 

APPENDIX B

Agenda Item 4

 

Page 15



Members Allowances/Scheme 2006 and 2007 2
Date:25.04.06 

2. Special Responsibility Allowances 

 Subject to para.2(a), 2(b) and 6 below, the following special responsibility 
allowances shall be paid per year: 

Responsibility Allowance (£) 
Leader 18,720 
Deputy Leader 11,232 
Senior Cabinet Member 5,455 
Cabinet Member(without Portfolio) Nil 
Junior Minister 2,717 

Chairmen
Development Control Board 3,696 
Audit and Standards Board 1,584 
Licensing Panel 1,584 
Appeals Panel 1,584 

Vice Chairmen 
Development Control Board 2,217 
Audit and Standards Board 951 
Licensing Panel 951 
Appeals Panel 951 

Shadow Leader 5524 
Deputy Shadow Leader 3277 

Shadow Chairmen 
Development Control Board 1,204 
Audit and Standards Board 348 
Licensing Panel 348 
Appeals Panel 348 
Shadow Ministers  559 

Leader of the Residents Association 
and the Independents Group 

5,617

Deputy Leader of the Residents 
Association and the Independents 
Group 

3,370

Scrutiny Committee 

Chairman 1,161 
Vice Chairman 697 
Shadow Chairman 697 

Quality Services Committee 

Chairman 1,741 
Vice Chairman 1,045 
Shadow Chairman 1,045 

Group Leader 211 per Group member excluding 
the Group Leader 

2. (a) Group Leaders will be entitled to the group leader allowance (for 
each member of their group) and the allowance for either the 
Leader, or Shadow Leader or Leader of the Residents Association 
and the Independents Group.  Group Leaders will not be entitled 
to other responsibility allowances for Cabinet or the Scrutiny 
Committee.

APPENDIX B

Agenda Item 4

 

Page 16



Members Allowances/Scheme 2006 and 2007 3
Date:25.04.06 

(b) Deputy Group Leaders will be entitled to the allowance for Deputy 
Leader, or Deputy Shadow Leader or Deputy Leader of the 
Residents Association and Independents Group, but not entitled to 
other responsibility allowances for Cabinet or the Scrutiny 
Committee.

3. Carer’s Allowance 

A carer’s allowance shall be paid where a Councillor has necessarily 
incurred expenditure for the care of children (up to the age of 15 years) 
or a dependent relative whilst undertaking the duties of the Council.

(1) Childcare £5.28 per hour 
 (2) Dependent Relative Care £11.62 per hour 

4. Travel and Subsistence Allowances 

Subject to para. 4.(1) below, for travel to meetings within the Borough, 
fixed sums based on home address shall be paid per year as follows: 

Band A (£55) 

For Councillors living in Brent, Heath, Joyce Green, Littlebrook, 
Newtown, Princes, Town and West Hill Wards 
              
Band B (£110)         

For Councillors living in Bean and Darenth, Castle, Joydens Wood, 
Stone, Sutton-at-Hone and Hawley and Wilmington Wards  

Band C (£220) 
For Councillors living in Greenhithe, Longfield, New Barn and Southfleet 
and Swanscombe Wards or outside the Borough Boundary  

(1) Approved Duties

 Subject to the provisions set out below, Travel and 
 Subsistence Allowances will be paid to those Councillors and 
 Co-opted Members attending meetings in respect of the 
 following duties (the Approved Duties): 

 (a) A meeting of the Cabinet or any Committee of the Cabinet;
 (b) A meeting of the Council or a Committee, Sub-committee 

or other body of the Council (for which proper notice is 
given);

 (c) A meeting held under joint arrangements with another 
  authority (for which proper notice is given); 

(d) External Seminars, Conferences and Training (authorised 
by the Managing Director or Monitoring Officer); 

 (e) Site meetings and inspections for which proper notice is 
  given; 

APPENDIX B

Agenda Item 4

 

Page 17



Members Allowances/Scheme 2006 and 2007 4
Date:25.04.06 

 (f) Formal meetings of Outside Bodies as a nominee of the 
  Council to which an appointment has been made either 
  by the Cabinet or the Council; 

(g) Any other duty which may from time to time be agreed by 
the Managing Director. 

(2) Subsistence Allowance

(a) For Approved Duties outside the Borough, the following 
rates shall apply where a Councillor or a Co-Opted Member 
is prevented by official duties from eating at home and 
thereby incurs additional expenditure.

NB: these rates are the maximum allowances payable and 
 only actual costs will be paid, if lower: 

 Breakfast     up to     £5.61 

 Lunch     up to     £7.75 

EITHER Tea     up to    £3.07 

OR

 Evening 
Meal

   up to    £9.61 (after 
8p.m. only) 

 (b) No subsistence allowance will be paid for Approved 
 Duties within the Borough. 

(3) Travelling Expenses

i. Mileage Allowances

 The following rates shall apply for journeys outside the 
 Borough; 

Cars and Vans 
(all size of engine)    

40p per mile for the first 10,000 miles 
25p per mile over 10,000 miles 

Motor Cycles    24 per mile 

Bicycles     20p per mile 

 ii. Public Transport (Rail and Taxicabs)

Taxicabs actual cost is reimbursed 

Train journeys second-class rail fare is reimbursed 

(4) Any representative (other than a Councillor) on an Outside Body 
will be entitled to claim travel allowances at the rates set out in 
para. 4.(3) above. 

(5) All claims for travelling and subsistence expenses must be 
accompanied by a receipt(s) and the completion of a claim form 
obtainable from the Financial Services.  

APPENDIX B

Agenda Item 4

 

Page 18



Members Allowances/Scheme 2006 and 2007 5
Date:25.04.06 

5. Co-opted Members 

The following Co-optees allowances shall be paid: 

Independent Members/Persons on the Standards 
Committee and Parish/Town Council representative 

£515 per year 
£11.62 per hour for attendance at investigation 
hearings and pre meetings relating to investigation 
hearings

6. Pension Benefits 

Basic and Special Responsibility Allowances shall be pensionable. 

7. Other Duties 

A Councillor who is also a member of another authority shall not be 
entitled to the receipt of allowances from both, in respect of the same 
duty(ies).

8. Forego Allowances 

Any Councillor or Co-opted Member may, in writing to the Managing 
Director, elect to forego any part of their entitlement to allowances under 
this Scheme. 

9. Part Year Entitlements 

9.1 If an amendment to this Scheme during any year changes the 
amount of basic allowance or special responsibility allowance to 
which a Councillor is entitled, the entitlement of the Councillor to 
such allowance in respect of the following periods:- 

  (a) beginning with 1 April and ending with the day before the 
first or only amendment during that year takes effect; 

  (b) beginning with the day an amendment takes effect and 
ending with the day before the next amendment during that 
year takes effect; or 

  (c) beginning with the day an amendment takes effect and 
ending with the 31 March; will be to payment of the 
proportion which the number of days in period (a), (b) or (c) 
bears to the number of days in that year. 

 9.2 Where the term of the Councillor begins or ends during the course 
of a year, his/her entitlement to a basic allowance will be to the 
payment of the proportion which the number of days which he/she 
held office during that year bears to the number of days in that 
year.

9.3 Where an amendment to the Scheme during any year changes 
the amount of basic allowance to which a Councillor is entitled and 
the Councillor does not hold office in that year throughout the 

APPENDIX B

Agenda Item 4

 

Page 19



Members Allowances/Scheme 2006 and 2007 6
Date:25.04.06 

period beginning with the 1 April and ending with the day before 
the amendment takes effect ("the Payment Period"), his/her 
entitlement to a basic allowance in respect of the Payment Period 
will be to payment of the proportion which the number of days in 
which he/she has held office during the Payment Period bears to 
the number of days in the Payment Period. 

 9.4 Where a Councillor has during only part of a year a special 
responsibility entitling him/her to a special responsibility 
allowance, his/her entitlement to a special responsibility allowance 
shall be to payment of the proportion which the number of days 
during which he/she has had such special responsibility bears to 
the number of days in that year. 

9.5 Where an amendment to the Scheme during any year changes 
the amount of special responsibility allowance to which a 
Councillor is entitled, and that Councillor has had a special 
responsibility entitling him/her to a special responsibility allowance 
during only part of the year beginning on the 1 April and ending 
with the day before the amendment takes effect ("the Allowance 
Period"), his/her entitlement to special responsibility allowance will 
be to payment of the proportion which the number of days in 
which he/she has had the special responsibility during the 
Allowance Period bears to the number of days in the Allowance 
Period.

9.6 Where a Councillor becomes or ceases to be a member of the 
Council, or accepts or relinquishes any special responsibility for 
which an allowance is paid, allowances will be paid pro-rata to the 
number of days during the year which he/she was a Councillor or 
held the special responsibility. 

10.  Payments and Claims 

(a) The Council shall make payments in respect of basic, special 
responsibility and travel allowances, in instalments of 1/12th (of the 
year's total, per month) of the amounts specified in this Scheme 
on the 15th day of the month in respect of which the Councillor's 
entitlement arose (or on the last working day before the 15th of 
the month if the day falls on a Saturday, Sunday or Bank Holiday). 

(b) Any claim for payment of carers (dependents and childcare) and 
travel and subsistence allowances under this Scheme shall be 
made within two months of the date of the duty to which the 
allowance relates.  Claims shall not be paid unless supported by a 
receipt confirming that the expenditure has been incurred.  The 
Council may make a payment where the allowance is not claimed 
within the period specified. 

11. Backdating 

APPENDIX B

Agenda Item 4

 

Page 20



Members Allowances/Scheme 2006 and 2007 7
Date:25.04.06 

Any amendments made during the year to the amounts payable under 
this Scheme may be backdated to the beginning of the year.

12. Suspension or Partial Suspension of a Councillor

Where payment of any allowance under this Scheme has already been 
made in respect of any period during which a Member; 

 (a) is suspended or partially suspended from his/her responsibilities 
or duties as a member of the Council in accordance with Part III of 
the Local Government Act 2000 or regulations made under that 
part; or 

(b) ceases to be a member of the Council; or 

(c) is in any other way not entitled to receive the allowance in respect 
of that period; 

the Standards Committee may require that such allowance (or part of) as 
relates to any such period be repaid to the Council.

13.  Publicity 

(a) As soon as reasonably practicable after determining a scheme of 
allowances, the Managing Director will ensure that a copy of the 
Scheme is available for inspection and publicised in accordance 
with the 2003 Regulations. 

(b) As soon as practicable after 1 April each year the Managing 
Director shall make arrangements for the publication of the total 
paid to each Member in each category of allowance specified in 
this Scheme, in the preceding year. 

Dated: 25 April 2006

Signed: GRAHAM HARRIS 
Managing Director 

APPENDIX B

Agenda Item 4

 

Page 21



Page 22

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Confirmation of the minutes of the meeting held on 27 October 2005
	4 Allowance for the Deputy Leader of the New England Party
	allowance for dep leader of NEP APPENDIX A FINAL
	allowance for dep leader of NEP APPENDIX B FINAL


